
 

Sustainability Task Force Members:   
Cheri Chastain Dave Donnan Ryne Johnson  William Loker 
Lucas RossMerz Mike Rubio, Vice Chair Mark Stemen, Chair  

Agenda 
Sustainability Task Force 

A Committee of the Chico City Council 
 

Meeting of Thursday, June 9, 2016 – 5:30 p.m. 
    Municipal Center - 421 Main Street, Conference Room No. 1 in the Council Chambers 

 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
     
2. APPROVE MAY 12, 2016 MEETING MINUTES 
 Draft 05/12/16 minutes attached. 
 
 
3. CONTINUE DISCUSSION REGARDING ADDITIONAL GREEN BUILDING CODE OPPORTUNITIES 

(Principal Planner Vieg and Building Official DePaola) – At the May 12th STF meeting, City staff 
provided an overview of how the California Green Building Code is updated by the State and 
administered by the City, and discussed with the STF opportunities to adopt additional building code 
requirements that might help the City achieve its greenhouse gas emissions reduction goal. The STF 
requested that the City Building Official attend its June 9th meeting and provide input and feedback on 
any STF recommendations, and participate in the STF’s July 28th meeting to discuss possible Code 
amendments with the development community. Attached are draft recommendations regarding the 
Building Code for STF consideration.  

 
 
4. DISCUSSION REGARDING A DRAFT MEMO TO BUTTE COUNTY REQUESTING INITIATION OF A 

MOTOR VEHICLE FUEL TAX TO MITIGATE THE ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS OF 
TRANSPORTATION (STF Member Rubio) – The topic of a gas tax to generate a reliable revenue 
source to implement transportation-related GHG emission reduction programs has been a discussion 
the STF has had over the course of its 2+ year existence. At its last meeting, the STF agendized a 
discussion of whether to forward a memo to Butte County regarding initiating a local motor vehicle fuel 
tax to mitigate the environmental effects of transportation throughout Butte County. Attached is a Draft 
STF Memo to Butte County Regarding Consideration of a County Gas Tax to Mitigate the 
Environmental Effects of Transportation.  

 
 
5. ESTABLISHMENT OF STF PROCEDURES REGARDING TERMS OF SERVICE, MEETING 

ATTENDANCE REQUIREMENTS, AND CHAIR TENURE/SELECTION (Principal Planner Vieg) – At 
its last meeting, the STF requested that staff provide current City practices for boards and commissions 
regarding terms of service, meeting attendance requirements, and chair tenure/selection. Attached is 
Administrative Procedure and Policy 10-1 entitled Board, Commission, Advisory Committees and Task 
Force Rules of Procedure. 

 
 
6. BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR -  Members of the public may address the STF at this time on any 

matter not already listed on the agenda, with comments being limited to three minutes.  The STF 
cannot take any action at this meeting on requests made under this section of the agenda. 

 
 
7. REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS - These items are provided for the STF’s information. Although the 

STF may discuss the items, no action can be taken at the meeting. Should the STF determine that 
action is required, an item may be included on a subsequent agenda.  

 
 



 

Sustainability Task Force Members:   
Cheri Chastain Dave Donnan Ryne Johnson  William Loker 
Lucas RossMerz Mike Rubio, Vice Chair Mark Stemen, Chair  

8. ADJOURNMENT - Next meeting scheduled for Thursday, July 28, 2016 
 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 05/12/16 STF Meeting Minutes (Draft) 
   Draft Recommendations Regarding the Building Code for STF Consideration 
   Draft STF Memo to Butte County Regarding Consideration of a Gas Tax 
   AP&P 10-1 Board and Committee Procedures 
   
 
 
Agenda available from the City’s website at www.ci.chico.ca.us.under “Meetings/Agendas” 

 
Prepared:  06/02/16      Community Development Department  
Posted:  06/02/16      421 Main Street, 2nd Floor, Chico, CA 95928 
Prior to:   5:30 pm      (530) 879-6800  

 
Please contact the City Clerk at 896-7250 should you require an agenda in an alternative format or if you need to 
request a disability-related modification or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting. This request 
should be received at least three working days prior to the meeting in order to accommodate your request. 

http://www.ci.chico.ca.us/


 

 

CITY OF CHICO SUSTAINABILITY TASK FORCE 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF  

May 12, 2016 
 

Municipal Center 

421 Main Street 

Council Chambers, Conference Rm. 1 

 

 

STF Members Present:  Mark Stemen, Chair 

     Mike Rubio, Vice Chair  

     Cheri Chastain 

     Dave Donnan 

     William Loker 

     Lucas RossMerz  

          

STF Members Absent:  Ryne Johnson 

 

Staff Members Present:  Brendan Vieg, Principal Planner 

     Leo DePaola, City Building Official 

      

Guests Present:   Angela Casler, Chamber Representative 

     Brigitte Dahrouj 

     Skip Noble 

     Jessie Lyon 

  

           

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

Chair Stemen called the meeting to order at 5:34 pm. STF members, City staff, and guest were 

present as noted.  

 

2. APPROVE MARCH 10, 2016 MEETING MINUTES 
 

The 03/10/16 minutes were approved (6-0-1; Johnson absent). 

 

3. PRELIMINARY DISCUSSION REGARDING CALIFORNIA’S VOLUNTARY GREEN 

BUILDING CODE 
 

Building Official DePaola provided an overview of how the California Green Building Code is 

updated by the State and administered by the City, and discussed with the STF opportunities to 

adopt building code requirements that might help the City achieve its greenhouse gas emissions 

reduction goal. 

 

There were a number of group discussions, including, but not limited to: 



 

 

 The ability of the development community to keep up with the regularly updated State 

Building Code requirements. 

 The fact that energy efficiency requirements in the California Building Code have 

increased 55% over the past 3 Code update cycles (9 years). 

 Concerns associated with the City’s existing housing stock and its lack of energy 

efficiency, including insulation, single pain windows, weather stripping, etc. 

 Opportunities to retrofit existing homes with energy efficiency requirements or to install 

fire sprinklers during remodels. There is an economy of scale that reduces the burden of 

requiring additional energy efficiency requirements during a larger remodel. The City 

could adopt a remodel retrofit ordinance requiring some level of improvements depending 

on the percentage of the home remodel. This approach could help address the City’s 

inefficient older residential and non-residential building stock. One approach could require 

“key” upgrades (e.g., windows, insulation) throughout the house if the remodel was to 

greater than 50% of the home. 

 The timing of adoption of the next State-required update to the Building Code and when 

additional amendments would need to be forwarded to staff to be included in that update.  

In all instances, proposed amendments would need be equal to or greater than existing 

Code requirements. The STF would need to provide its recommendations in July in order to 

have them considered by Council in the Fall. 

 There was a discussion about whether cool roofs are required by the current Green 

Building Code, or whether they would be required under the State’s new Code update. 

 There is an effort to improve the City’s hazard profile for insurance purposes, which 

includes consideration of a fire sprinkler retrofit program during remodels. 

 There was a general discussion about what type of Code amendments might be supported 

by the City Council, including solar/thermal infrastructure, pre-wiring for solar, whole 

house fans, zero step requirements, home orientation, E/V fueling infrastructure, inclusion 

of valves for laundry to landscape, etc. These ideas were considered achievable and 

beneficial.   

 Potential amendments to the City’s RECO ordinance to capture more energy efficiency 

upgrades through window upgrades and insulation. 

 The group discussed the fact that there would likely be support to subsidize solar thermal 

installations through expediting the City’s permit process. 

 The City could consider a Time-of-Sale Housing Inspection Program to help address 

energy efficiency problems in the existing house stock. These types of programs generally 

provide a potential purchaser with information about the condition of a dwelling and can 

require the correction of immediate concerns. The reporting offers a limited overview of 

the condition of a building's components and fixtures. They are not technically extensive, 

and prospective buyers still often seek additional evaluation from independent housing 

inspectors prior to purchasing a dwelling. 

 There was general agreement that for new construction, the State’s Code requirements are 



 

 

aggressive and enhanced on a regular cycle. The STF agreed that its focus should be on 

improving the City’s existing building inventory. 

The STF requested that Building Official DePaola return to its next meeting and provide input and 

feedback on any STF recommendations, and then again at the STF’s July meeting to discuss 

possible Code amendments with the development community. 

 

Skip Noble provided background regarding himself and his efforts to develop and market solar 

generators, as well as the availability of electric trucks for the community.  He offered himself up 

as a resource to the Task Force.  

 

Angela Casler, representing the Chamber Board of Directors, shared concerns with subsidizing 

sustainability programs. 

 

4. STF CHAIR DISCUSSION 

 

STF Chair Stemen shared that the City’s boards and commissions have regular schedules for 

choosing a new Chair. He shared that he is enjoying his role as Chair, and that he would likely run 

again if there was a new election.  

 

The group discussed whether the STF should hold an election at an upcoming meeting.   

 

The STF also discussed what protocol should be used to remove members who are regularly 

absent, and inquired how a new STF member would be designated. 

 

Staff was directed to bring back current City practices for boards and commissions regarding 

terms of service, meeting attendance requirements, and choosing a chair. 

 

5. PRIORITIZING UPCOMING AGENDA ITEMS 

 

The STF prioritized agenda items for upcoming meetings. 

 

The STF agreed to agendize the following topics for its June 9th meeting: 1) continue the 

discussion regarding green building code opportunities; 2) discuss the draft county gas tax memo 

prepared by STF members Rubio and Loker; and 3) establish protocols regarding STF terms of 

service, meeting attendance requirements, and choosing a chair. 

 

The STF agreed to the agendize the following topics for its July 28th meeting: 1) the City’s 

Sustainability Website, including an invitation to webmaster Chuck Lungren; and 2) creating a 

Facebook presence for the City’s sustainability efforts. 

 

6. BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR 

 

Jessie Lyon provided background on the biofuel company he works for and that the company is 

considering coming to Chico. He also shared that the company plans to give back some of its 



 

 

profits to the community in order to support sustainability efforts. 

 

7. REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS 

 

STF member Chastain attended the County’s solar array ordinance meeting and shared the goals of 

the proposed program.  The County’s meeting was an opportunity to seek public feedback. 

 

STF member Chastain also shared that the national bike challenge is underway and highlighted 

ways to participate. 

 

Principal Planner Vieg shared with the STF that he had resubmitted an application for the 

CivicSpark program and that the application was approved.   

 

8. ADJOURNMENT 

  

There being no further business from the STF, the meeting adjourned at 7:15pm to the meeting of 

Thursday, June 9, 2016. 

 

 

 

                                                                                                      

Date Approved   Brendan Vieg, Principal Planner 



Recommendations Regarding Building Code for STF Consideration 

 

1) Adopt a remodel retrofit ordinance that would require more 

comprehensive energy efficiency upgrades at the time of a remodel.  The 

level of improvements required would depend on the percentage of the 

home remodel. This approach could help address the City’s inefficient older 

residential and non-residential building stock. As an example, one approach 

could be to require “key” upgrades (e.g., windows, insulation) throughout 

the building if the remodel was to greater than 50% of the building. 

 

2) Explore a Time-of-Sale Housing Inspection Program at an upcoming 

meeting with the realty folks in attendance. This type of program would 

help address energy efficiency problems in the City’s existing house stock. 

The program could provide a potential purchaser with information about 

the condition of a dwelling and could require the correction of immediate 

concerns. Generally, these types of programs offer a limited overview of 

the condition of a building's components and fixtures. They are not 

technically extensive, and prospective buyers still seek additional 

evaluation from independent housing inspectors. 

 

3) At an upcoming meeting, agendize and celebrate the long list of changes 

that have been made to California’s Green Building Code that mirror 

actions identified in the City’s CAP to reduce GHG emissions. 

 



 
TO:  Tim Snelling, Community Development Director              DATE:  06/16/2016 

 

FROM:   Mark Stemen, Chair, Chico Sustainability Task Force FILE:  STF File 

 

SUBJECT:  Consideration of a County Gas Tax to Mitigate the Environmental Effects of Transportation   

 

In 2012, the City of Chico City Council adopted a Climate Action Plan (CAP), which identifies actions to 

be taken by the City and the community to reduce greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions to 25% below 2005 

levels by 2020 --- a goal consistent with State and Federal efforts to reduce GHGs emissions linked to 

climate change. Following CAP adoption, Council appointed a seven member Sustainability Task Force 

(STF) to function as a "working committee" to lead the City's implementation of the CAP.  The STF has 

been meeting regularly over the past two and half years to review the status of the CAP and to prioritize 

actions for implementation. 

Last year, the STF developed a community-wide GHG emissions inventory to serve as an annual 

indicator of the City’s progress in reaching its GHG reduction goal. The inventory is a combination of 

estimates of GHG emissions associated with activity in three sectors – Energy, Transportation and Waste. 

The 2015 inventory identified transportation as the largest contributor to Chico’s GHG emissions.  Butte 

County’s recently adopted CAP similarly identifies transportation as a leading source of GHG emissions 

at the County-level.   

Given these facts, the STF requests that the County consider initiating a local motor vehicle fuel tax, or 

gas tax, to mitigate the environmental effects of transportation throughout Butte County.  Pursuant to 

State Board of Equalization Publication No. 59 (California Local Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxation Law), it 

appears feasible for the County to implement a local gas tax for this purpose (see attached).   

A gas tax would generate a reliable revenue source to implement transportation-related GHG emission 

reduction programs, which would aid the County and City in achieving adopted GHG emission reduction 

goals.   

In researching possible funding mechanisms for the alternative transportation measures in Chico’s CAP, 

the STF found that other communities are turning to a fuel tax to fund their projects. In California, 

however, a city cannot enact such a tax.  A local gas tax must be initiated and coordinated at the County-

level. 

We are hopeful that you’ll further research this opportunity, and ultimately present the concept to the 

Butte County Board of Supervisors for its consideration. 

DRAFT 






























	1_Agenda
	2_STF Minutes 05-12-16 Draft
	3_Building Code Recommendations
	4_Draft STF Env Gas Tax Proposal_Revised
	5_BOE 59_Attachment
	6_AP&P_Task Force Rules

